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INDEPENDEN T AUD ITO R S' REPO RT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency 
Accident and Health Fund 

W e have audited tile accom panying balance sheet of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - 
Accident and Health Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fta~d) as of December 31, 1999, and the related 
statem ents of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnil~gs, and cash flows tbr the year then ended. 
"]'hese financial statem ents are the responsibility of the Fund's m anagem ent. O ur responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statem ents based on our audit. The financial statements of the Fund as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 1998, were audited by other auditors whose opinion dated June 11, 1999, on 
those statem ents was unqualified. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and w ith Government 
AuJiritlg ~'ft~Jlc]ordv, issued by the Com ptroller General ofthe Ut~ited States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
m aterial m isstatement. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statem ents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estim ates m ade by m anagem ent, as w ell as evaluating the overall financial statem ent presenlalion. 

W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opildon. 

In our opinion, the 1999 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, file 
financial position of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - Accident and Health Fund as of 
D ecem ber 3 l, 1999, and the results of its operalions and its cash flow s for the year then ended in conform ity 
w ith generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated April 19, 2000 on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its com pliance w ith 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April 19, 2000 

Baton Rouge ~ Donoldsonville ' Gonzoles ~ New Orlecms . St. Fronclsville 
Associated O[fice~ in Principal Citle~ o{ the United States 



O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 

Cash (note 4) 
lavestments (note 4) 
Reinsurance receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

BALANCE SH EETS 
D EC EM BER 31. 1999 A N D 1998 

A SSETS 

1999 1998 

87,467 
2,001,180 

89,423 
70,520 
20.321 

2,268,9 

LIA BILITIES A N D R ETA IN ED EA R NIN G S 

IAabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
I)ue to affiliates (note 2) 
Accotm ts payable 

Retained earnings 

See accompanying noRrs to financial statements 

- 2 - 

1,710,000 
68,479 
206,589 

66,912 
2,846,220 

63,614 
68,846 

29,275 

3,074,867 

837,000 
38,976 
161.512 

985,068 2,037,488 

283,843 1,037,379 

$ 2,268,911 $ 3,074,867 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
A CC ID EN T A N D H EA LTIt FUN D 

STATEM ENTS O F REVEN UES~ EXPENSES AN D CH ANG ES IN RETAINED EARN ING S 
Y EARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 AN D 1998 

R EV EN UES: 
Prenlium income 
hw estnlent incom e 
Contribution 

EX PEN SES: 

Administrative fees (note 2) 
Claims expense (note 3) 
Reinsurance prewLitlln s 

Service agent fees (note 2) 
M iscellaneous 

Net (loss) income 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statem enls 

- 3- 

1999 1998 

7,135,223 
105,958 

4,000 

7,245,18 

15,455 
7,159,160 
442,388 

364,244 
17,470 

8,469,293 
127,388 

4,000 

8,600,68 

17,725 
7,049,006 

471,973 
405,230 

12.368 

7,998,717 7,956,302 

(753,536) 

283.843 

644,379 

393,000 

$ 1,037,379 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
A C C ID EN T AN D H EA LTI! FUND 

STATEM ENTS O F CASH FLO W S 
YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

Cash flow s from operating activities: 

Net (loss) income 
l,ess adjustment for investment income 

Adjnstmeats to reconcile net (loss) income to net 
cash (used in) provided by operations: 
Decrease (increase) in reinsurance receivable 
I)ccrcase (increase) ill receivables 
Decrease ill unpaid claim s liability 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 
due to affiliates 

Total adjustnlents 

1999 1998 

(753,536) 
(105,958) 

(25,809) 
(1,674) 

(127,000) 

74,580 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (939,397) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of investmenls 
Sales/m aturities of invcstnlents 
lnvestn'Jcnt interest received 

(346,713) 
1,168,232 
138.433 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 959,952 

N et increase in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end ofyear 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 
- 4 - 

20,555 

66,912 

$ 644,379 
127,388) 

516.99 

512,120 
63,625 

173,000) 

176,107) 

226.638 

743.629 

(1,376,981) 
596,537 
103,727 

(676,717) 

66.912 

87,467 $ 66,912 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENC3 
A C C IDENT A N D H EA LTH FUND 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
D EC EM BER 31. 1999 A ND 1998 

SIG N IFIC AN T A C C O U NTING PO LIC IES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LM RMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public 
liability coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341- 
135(I, all local government subdivisions in the State of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The 
Accident and Health Fund's (the Fund) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and 
adm inister, on behalf of the mem ber local governm ental subdivisions, a program of interlocal 
risk management, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss 
control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the 
l.ouisiana M unicipal Association; a member may withdraw from lbe Fund by giving proper 
notice. Fund underw riting and rate-setting policies have been established by the board of the 
Fund after consultation w ith the actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, 
m em bers would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claim s. 

Louisiana M unicipal Association (LM A) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and 
is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as 
the adm inistrator for the Fund. 

Risk M anagement, Inc. (RM I) is a third-party 
ftmds. RM I, a Lonisiana Corporation, is a whol 

service agent prim arily for LM RM A insurance 
y-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency (LM RFA) was formed under Louisiana Revised 
Statutes 33:1349(e). LM RFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess 
funds lo provide reinsurance. A dm inistration of the A gency is vested in the Executive Board of 
I,M A . A s of Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, there were 76 and 82 participating m unicipalities, 
respectively. 

The various I,M RM A Funds, LM A and RM I are all affiliated through com m on m em bership and 
m anagem ent control. A lthough all of these entities are related parties, their various fund 
balances are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason, each entity 
is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 and GASB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual m ethod of 
accounting and the flow of econom ic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its 
operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

- 5- 



ANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AND H EALTH FUND 

N O TES TO FINA N C IA L STA TEM ENTS 
DECF, M BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) lnveslntents 
Investm ents are reported at fair value except for short-term and m oney market investments, 
consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of 
purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized and unrealized 
gains and losses on investments recorded at fair value are included in investment incom e. 
Investments include certificates of deposit, money market accounts, repurchase agreements and 
LI.S. govermnent Agency obligations. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 

Prem ium s are recognized as incom e over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any 
adjnstments to annual premiums are considered to he a change in estimate and arc recognized in 
the year they become known. 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 

The Fund establishes claim s liabilities based on estim ates of the ultimate cost of claim s 
(including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of 
claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be 
estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of reinsurance 
recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claim s. Because actual 
claim s costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, 
and dam age awards, the process used in com puting claim s liability does not necessarily resuh in 
an exact am ount. C laim s liabilities are recom puted periodically using a wariety of actuarial and 
statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims 
frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of 
estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on 
actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be 

appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or 
credited to expenses in the period in which they are made. The carry ing amount of liabilities for 
claims losses and claims expenses is presented at the estimated claim amounts in the financial 
stateulents. 

09 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts 
w ith banks. Because certificates of deposit, money m arkets and repurchase agreem ents are 
usually purchased w ith m aturities of 90 days or more or are reinvested continuously, they are 
classified as investments. 

- 6- 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AND H EALTH FUND 

NO TES TO FINANC IAL STATEM ENTS 
D ECEM BER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(g) ReinJ'ttrattce 
The Fund uses reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large losses oll insured events. Further 
description of the reinsurance coverage is described in note 5. Reinsurance perm its recovery of 
a porlion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge tile primary liability of the 
Fund as direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Fund does not report reinsured risks as 
liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. Claims expense 
consists of claims incurred during the carrent year, adjustments to the accounting estimate of 
prior years' claim s expense and a reduction for claim s covered by the reinsurer in accordance 
w ith the reinsurance policy. 

(h) Income Taxes 

"lhe ]Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(I) of the Interna 
Revenue Code. 

(i) U~'e of Estimates 

M anagem ent of the Fund has m ade a num ber of estim ates and assum ptions relating to the 
reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conform ity w ith 
generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. RELATE1) PARTY TRA NSACTIO NS 

I,M A , RM I and LM RF'A provide services related to the self-insurance fim ds operated for the benefit of 
Louisiana m unicipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percenlage of the respective 
earned normal prem iums as follows: 

Expenses 

Administrative fees - LM A ($0.60 per 
person per month) 

Service agent fees - RM I ($13.05 for 
health participants and $1.20 for 
dental participants) 

Due to affiliates 
I,M A 
RM I 

- 7- 

1999 1998 

5,455 $ 17,725 

$ 364.244 $ 405.230 

1,282 $ 
67.197 

1,599 
37.377 

68.479 $ 38,976 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENC'~ 
ACCIDENT AND H EALTH FUND 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S R ESERVE 

The follow ing represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claim s liabilities forthe Fund forthe years 
ended Decem ber31, 1999 and 1998: 

1999 19'98 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
Expenses at beginning of year 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment 
Expense-provision for insured events 

(Amounts in thousands) 

1,837 $ 2,010 

7,159 7,049 

Lcss payments - claim s and claim 

Adjustment expenses (7,286) (7,2222 

Unpaid claims reserve $ 1,710 $ 1,837 

Settled claim s have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years 

DEPO SITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

The Fund m ast comply with Rule N umber 4 of the Comm issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule N um ber 4, all deposits in financial institutions m ade by these agencies shall bc 
lim ited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. 

Deposits in financial institutions m ay exceed the federally insured am ount in any one financial 
institution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination 
of surplus, tm divided profils and reserves as currenlly reported by the financial ir~stitution. In regard Io 
deposits and investments, the Fund is in compliauce with these revised provisions as of and during the 
period ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998. 

A ll dem and deposits and certificates of deposit are insured or collateralized by pledged securities held 
by an agent in the name of the Fund. 

1999 1998 

Insured 
Uninsured 

- 8- 

87,467 $ 66,912 

$ 87,467 $ 66,912 
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O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

V 

ACCIDENT AND H EALTH FUND 

(continued) 

Under Rule N um ber 4 of the Com m issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund m ay invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U .S. Governm ent and its agencies, as well as financial institutions. 
Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts, U.S. Government 
obligations and repurchase agreem ents. 

The Fund's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Fund at year-end. Category I securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name. Category 
2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust department or agent in the Fund's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investm ents for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its lrust departm ent or 
agent, but not in the Fund's name. The amortized cost of the Fund's investments are $2,011,510 and 
$2.838,063 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The fair value for investm ents by security 
type at Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 are as follows: 

Certificates of deposit 
M oney market accounts and repurchase 

agreelrlents 
U.S. Government Agency obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

1999 

100,000 $ 

487,228 
1,046,577 
367,375 

100,000 

807,731 
160,821 
777.668 

$ 2,001,180 $ 2,846,220 

C ategory 

The certificates of deposit, money m arket accounts, and repurchase agreem ents are insured or 
collateralized by obligations of the U.S. Government, registered in the name of and held by the Fund's 
agent. 

The scheduled m aturities of investments held were as follows at December 31 

Due in one year 
D ue after one year through five year 

- 9 - 

1999 1998 

$1,666,830 
_ 334,350 

$ 1,612,939 



M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM E] 
ACCIDENT AND H EA LTH FUND 

DEPOSITS AND INVESTM ENTS (continued) 

nvestment income for the years ended I)ecember 31
, 1999 and 1998 consists of the following 

Interest income $ 124
,123 

Realized gains (losses) - net 322 
l)nrealized gains (losses) arising during the year ( 18,487) 

5. R EINSUR ANCE PO LICY CO VERAG 

$ 105,958 

$ 122,210 

~2_Z_8 

$ :J 27,388 

Subsequent to Decem ber 31, 1994, tile Fund obtained reinsurance from a com mercial insurer to 
provide the follow ing coverage: 

tern I: Annual aggregate in excess of 125% of annual earned normal prem iunl 

tern 11: $900,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss 

The com mercial reinsurer covered all claims incurred in 1995 and thereafter
. N o claim s for 

reinsurance are outstanding from LM RFA as of Decem ber 3 I
, 1999 and 1998. 

- 10 - 
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Reoort on Com oliance and on Internal Control over Financla 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

in Accordance w ith Governm ent A uditine Standards 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency 
Accident and Health Fund: 

W e have audited the financial statements of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - Accident and 
Health Fund as of and for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated A pril 19, 
2000. W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
G eneral of the United States. 

Comp liance 

A s part of obtaining reasonable assurance about w hether the Fund's financial statem ents are free of m aterial 
m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, conlracls and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express snch an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instauccs of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported trader Govermnent Auditing Standard~. 

nlernal Control O ver Financial Reoortina 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order 
to dcterm iue our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on |he financial statem ents and 
not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the intenm l control 
over financial reporting w ould not necessarily disclose all m aters in the internal control over financial reporting 
that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
m ore of the internal control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in 
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited m ay occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e 
noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
m aterial w eaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagemem Agency - 
Accident and ltealth Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Louisiana Com m issioner of 
Insurance and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April 19, 2000 

- ]l - 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Officers and Truslees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 
Public Liability Fund 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and w ith Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General oflhc Untied States. Those slandards require ~that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
m aterial tnisstaletnent. An audit i~cludes exam ining, on a lest basis, evidence supporling the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounling principles used and 
significant estimates made by m anagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial stalement presentation. 
W e believe lhal our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the financial 
position of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - Public Liability Fund as of December 31, 1999, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flow s for lhe year then ended in conform ity w ith generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated April 19, 2000, on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tesls of its compliance w ith 
certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit was m ade for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the 1999 basic finaucial slatclnenls taken as a 
whole. The supplementary information included on page 13 is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is nol a required part of the basic financial stalements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all 
m aterial respects in relation to the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all 
m aterial respects in relation to the 1999 basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial inform ation on page 13 for the year ended December 31, 1998, was audited by other auditors 
whose report dated June 11,1999, stated that, in their opinion, such information was fairly statcd in all 
m aterial respccls in relation to the basic financial statem ents for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, taken as 

a whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiaua 
A pril 19, 2000 

Baton Rouge ' Donaldsonville ' Gonzoles " New Orleor~s ' St. Froncisville 
~ ociolod Otfice~ in P, in~ipol C it;es cd fho United S~ole~ 



Cash (note 4) 
hwestments (note 4) 
Deductibles receivable 
Accounls receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

Note receivable (note 2) 

PAL R ISK  M AN AG EM ENT AG ENCY 

DECEM BER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

A S S E T S 

1999 1998 

502,192 

13,839,963 
175,216 
361,706 
86,525 
812.328 

$ 15,777,930 

lA B IL IT IE S A N D R E T A IN E D E A R N IN G S 

l.iabililies: 
Unpaid, claims liability (note 3) 
Unearned prem iunls 

l)ue to affiliates - net (note 2) 
Accrucd expenses 

Retained earnings 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

- 2 - 

7,524,570 

2,130,654 
227,290 
4.481 

$ 187,470 
14,668,737 

65,186 
87,243 
65,604 

1,405,758 

$ 16,479,998 

9,886,995 11,592,69 

5,890,935 4,887,307 

$ 15,777,930 $ 16,479,998 



O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 

STATEM ENTS O F REVENUES~ EXPENSES AND CItANG ES IN RETAINED EARNING S 
Y EA R S EN DED D ECEM BER 31. 1999 A N D 1998 

R EVEN UES 

Prenlill111 inconle 
]llVeStlnCllt inCOln~ 

Total revellue 

EXPENSES 

Claims expense (nole 3) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
Reinsurance prenfimns (note 2) 
Service agent fees (nole 2) 
M iscellaneons 

Totalexpenses 

Net income (loss) 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom panying notes to Enancial statements 

- 3 

1999 1998 

5,471,530 
451.357 

5,922,887 

2,481,702 
541,686 

1,341,042 
519,996 

34.833 

4,919,259 

6,208,246 
1,207,968 

7,416,214 

4,167,643 
1,313,311 

1,522,415 
590,324 

26,048 

7,619,74 

003,628 (203,527) 

4,887,307 5,090,834 

$ 5,890,935 $ 4,887.307 



A NA M UN IC IPA L R ISK  M A NA G EM ENT A G EN C Y 
PUBLIC LIABILITY FU ND 

STATEM ENTS O F CAStt FLO W S 
Y EAR S ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income (loss) 
l,ess adjustment for investment income 

Adjnstments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 
cash used in operations: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
Increase (declease) in unpaid claims liability 
Increase (deoease) in accrued expenses, unearned 
prclnium s and due to affiliates 

Total adjustments 

$ 1,003,628 
(451,357) 

552,27 

(384,493) 
(854,525) 

1998 

$ (203,527) 
(1,207,968) 

(1,411,495) 

(4,035) 
(743,750) 

(851,171) (423,016) 

(2,090,189) (1,170,801) 

Net cash used in operating activities (1,537,918) 

Cash flow s from investing activities: 
Purchase of investnlents 

Sales/maturity of investments 
Investment interest received 
Principal paym ents from note receivable 

N et cash plovided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 

- 4 - 

(4,234,265) 
4,578,568 
914,907 
593.430 

1,852,640 

314.722 

87.470 

$ 502,192 

(2,582,296) 

(5,579,409) 
6,120,378 
1,102,519 
526.953 

2.170.441 

(411,855) 

599,325 

87,470 



ANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
PU BLIC LIA BILITY FUN D 

1. SIG NIFICANT ACCO UNTING PO LICIES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana M unicipal Risk Management Agency (LM RM A) was formed under I,ouisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public 
liability coverage for its mem ber organizations. In accordance w ith Revised Statutes 33:1341- 
1350, all local government subdivisions in the State of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The 
LMRMA Public Liability Fund's (the Fnnd) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and 
adm inister, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal 
risk management, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss 
control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the 
Louisiana M unicipal Association; a mem ber m ay w ithdraw from the Fund by giving proper 
notice. Fund underwriting and rate-seitiug policies have been established by the board of the 
Fund after consultation w ith the actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, 
mem bers would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claim s. 

l,ouisiana M unicipal Association (LM A) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and 
is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as 
the adm inistrator for the Fund. 

Risk M anagement, Inc. (RM I) is a third-party 
fimds. RM I, a Louisiana Corporation, is a whol 

service agent prim arily for LM RM A insurance 
y-ow ned subsidiary of LM A. 

l,ouisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency (LM RFA) was formed under l,ouisiana Revised 
Statutes 33:1349(e). LM RFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess 
fim ds to provide reinsurance. Adm inistration of the Agency is vested in the Executive Board of 
I,M A . LM RFA reinsures the LM RM A Public Liability Fund. As of both Decem ber 31, 1999 
and 1998, there were 174 and 179 participating m unicipalities, respectively. 

The various LM RM A Funds, I,M A and RM I are all affiliated through com mon nlcm bcrship and 
managem ent control. A lthough all of these entities are related parties, their various fnnd 
balances are available only to the individnal entity for its operations. For this reason, each entity 
is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance w ith GA SB 10 and GA SB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterprise fired and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of 
accounting and the flow of econom ic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its 
operations unless those pronouncements conflict w ith or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

- 5 - 



A L RISK M ANAG 
PU BLIC LIA BILITY FUN D 

N O TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
D EC EM BER 31. 1999 A N D 1998 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, 
consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of 
purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized and nnrcalizcd 
gains and losses on investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. 
Investm ents include certificates of deposit, money m arket accounts, repurchase agreements and 
U.S. government agency obligations and are held for long-term purposes. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 
Prem iums arc recognized as incom e over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any 
adjustments to amlual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate and are recognized in 
the year they becom e known. 

Accounts receivable are current and considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore 
no reserve for bad debts has been established. 

(e) Uapaid Clahns Liability 
The Fund establishes claim s liabilities based on estim ates of the ultimate cost of claim s 
(including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been repotted but not settled and of 
claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs nm st be 
estim ated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estim ated am ounts of reinsurance 
recoverable on unpaid claim s are deducted fi'om the liability for nnpaid claim s. Because actual 
claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, 
and damage awards, the process used in computing claim s liability does not necessarily result in 
an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as general liability. Claim s liabilities are 
recomlmted periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current 
estim ates that reflect recent settlements, claim s frequency, and otber econom ic and social factors. 
A provision for inflation in the calculation of estim ated future claims costs is im plicit in the 
calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and 
on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments 
to claim s liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the period in which they are m ade. The 
costs associated w ith new and renewal contracts as acquisition costs are im material to the 
financial statements and are expensed when incurred. The carrying amount of liabilities for 
claim s losses and claim s expenses is presented at the estim ated claim am ounts in the financial 
statem ents. Such reserves have been discounted at 5.8%  at Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in dem and deposit accounts 
w ith banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and repurchase agreements arc 
usually purchased w ith maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investments. 

- 6- 



O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AN D 1998 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO LICIES 

(h) 

(continued) 
Reinsurance 

The Fund uses reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Reinsurance 
perm its recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge the 
primary liability of the Fund as direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Fund does not report 
reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by 
reinsurers. As of M ay 1, 1986, LM RFA became the reinsurer for the FuuC 

Incom e T~o:es 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(i) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the 
reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statem ents in conform ity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. R ELATED PA RTY TRANSACTIO NS 

(tO Fees arid Services 

LM A, RM I and LM RFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the 
benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the 
respective earned normal premiums (ENP) as follows: 

1999 1998 
Expenses: 

Administrative fee - LM A (2% of 
ENP plus interest earned) $ 541,686 $ .: 1,313,31 ! 

Service ageut - RM 1 (9.5% of ENP) $ 5 !9,996 $ 590,324 

Reinsurance - LM RFA (24.5% of ENP) $ 1,341,04_2. ~; : ._],522,4:[5 

Reinsurauce recoveries- LM RFA $ 5~ 6.04=2 .$,~~2,306,234 

Due to (from) affiliates: 
LM A 
RM I 
LM RFA 

$ 293,418 
57,820 

(__  123,948) 

$ 1,065,044 
67,824 

~__ _ 57~ 3~_~ 
$ 1~075,534 

1,M A receives all interest earnings of the Ftmd as part of this adm inistrative fee. Amounts have 
been returned by LM A to the Fund based on the Board's discretion. 

- 7- 



O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
PU BLIC LIA BILITY FUN D 

NO TES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

2. RELATED PARTY TRA NSACTIO N S 

(b) Note Receivable 

(coixtinued) 

I.M A has a variable rate note agreement with the Fund. Tile note bears an interest rate equal to 
the average investment return yielded by the Fund on its other investments (6.20% and 6.34% at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively). LM A is currently making monthly payments of 
$20,425 due the first day of each month based on a 360 month amortization. Collateral for this 
note is a building owned by LM A. The Fund earned interest of $85,495 and $118,142 in respect 
to the note for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Ill 1999, the Ftmd 
received $433,829 as part of the 1998 excess interest distribution to be used as a reduction in the 
balance of the note and ill 1998, the Fund received $400,000 as part of the 1997 excess interest 
distribution to be used as a reduction in the balance of the note. 

The payments on principal balance due at December 31, 1999 are scheduled as follows 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

(t9 Premium Rebates 

$ 195,366 
209,239 
224,097 
183 6,6226 

$ ~:: 812,328 

l)uring 1997, tile Fund's participants used $286,991 unearned credits. In addition, the Fund 
received a rebate of $896,333 from LM A's board related to 1996 earned adm inistrative fees 
which were available to participants for 1998 prem ium paym ents. In addition, the Fund received 
$518,749 as a reduction in the notes receivable from LM A. 

I)uring 1998, tile Fund's participants used $434,372 unearned credits. In addition, tile Ftmd 
received a rebate of $600,000 from LM A's board related to 1997 earned adm inistrative fees 
which were available to participants for 1999 prem ium payments. In addition, the Fund received 
$400,000 as a reduction in the notes receivable from LM A. 

I)uring 1999, the Fund's participants used $600,257 unearned credits. In addition, tile Fund 
received a rebate of $725,737 from LM A's board related to 1998 earned administrative fees 
which will be available to participants for 2000 premium payments. In addition, the Fund 
received $433,829 as a reduction in the notes receivable from LM A. 

- 8 - 



O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
PUBLIC LIABILITY FUN D 

3. C LAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID C LAIM S RESERVE 

]'he follow ing represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claim s liabilities for the Fund for the years 
ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998: 

Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsurance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (net) 

Net incurred related 1o 
Curlent year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

N et paid related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 
Reinsurance recoverables 

Liahility for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 

1999 1998 
(Amounts in thousands) 

$ 14,860 
_6~481 
_8~ 7___ 9 

2,699 
~. 21_73 

_2 482 

460 
2. 876 
~35L6 

7,525 
_7,46Q 

$ 18,426 
9,303 

_ _  9,123 

3,706 
462 

4,168 

687 
4,225 

__ _4,91_2 

8,379 
6.481 

$ /4~985 $ !4,860 

The Fund's claims payable have been discounted based on the Fund's anticipated payout patterns and a 
discount rate assum ption of 5.8%  for Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, which m anagem ent expects to 
approxim ate the interest earnings over the payout period. The effect of the reserve discounts was 
$856,000 and $927,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

- 9 - 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
PUBLIC LIA BILITY FUND 

4. D EPO SITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

The Fund m ust com ply w ith Rule Nnm ber 4 of the Com m issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule N um ber 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by lhese agencies shall be 
lim ited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-stale institution. 
Deposits in financial institutions may exceed the federally insured amount in any one financial 
institution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination 
of surplns, undivided profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution in question. 
In regard to deposits and investments, the Fund is in com pliance w ith these revised provisions as of and 
during the period ended Dccember 31, 1999 and 1998. 

The demand deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year 
end. "Insured" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurance or pledged 
collateral. "Uninsured" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurauce or 
pledged collateral. 

lusured 
Uninsured 

1999 

502,192 $ 187,470 

$ 502,192 $ 187,470 

U nder Rule N um ber 4 of the Com m issioner of Insurance, State of l,ouisiana, the Fund m ay invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, as well as financial institutions. 
hlchlded ill investnlents are certificates ofdeposit, m oney m arket accounts and repurchase agrcemeuts. 

The Fund's investm ents are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Fund at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agenl in the Fund's name. Category 
2 includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held hy the broker's or 
dealer's trusl department or agent in the Fund's nam e. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investm ents for w hich 'the securities are held by the broker or dealer, ol by its lrt~st deparlm ent or 
ageut, but not in the Fund's name. The amortized cost of the Fund's investmenls are $14,253,137 and 
$14,537,739 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The fair value for investments by security 
type at December 31, 1999 and 1998 are as follows: 

Certificates of deposit 
M oney market accounts 
U.S. Government Agency obligations 
U.S. Treasury  securities 

999 
Fair 
Value Category 

$ 100,000 
779,871 

11,497,255 
__ _L462,837 

1998 
Fair 
V alue..e  _  Category  

$ 100,000 
1,052,076 
11,659,036 

_ ~ Z~ 

~!3.,839~963_ $ t4~668,737 

- 10 - 



O U ISIANA M UNIC IPA L RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
PUBI.IC LIA BILITY FUND 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

DEPOSITS AND INVESTM ENTS (continued) 

The scheduled maturities of investments held were as follows at December 31 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
I)ue after five years through ten years 
D ae after ten years 

$ 1,894,779 
2,348,435 
2,647,325 
6,949,424_ 

1998 

$ 1,429,986 
4,704,293 
2,323,131 
6~21 L327 

$ 13~839~ 6~ $: 13,668,737 

Tbe U.S. Governm ent agency obligation investm ents are direct obligations registered in tile name of 
tile Fund and held by the Fund's investnaent agent. The repurchase agreement, certificates of deposits

, 

cash and m oney m arkets are collateralized by obligations of the U .S. Govcrnment registered in the 
nam e of and held by ~he Fund's agent. 

Included in investm ent balances as of I)ecem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 are derivative investments. These 
investments included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating rate 
securilies with a market value of $3,105,366 and $3,886,588 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. These derivative investm ents are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience 
fim lre inarket value fluctuations. 

Investm ent incom e for the years ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 consists of Ihe follow ing: 

1999 1998 

lntcrcst income $ 992,188 $ 1,038,543 
Realized gains (losses) - net 3,341 11,283 
Unlealized gains (losses) arising during the year (__  544,172) 1~ [_4_2 

5. REINSURANC E PO LICY CO VERA G E 

$ :451,357 $ 1~207,968 

During the periods ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, LM RFA provided reinsurance to LM RM A 
Public Liability Fund w itb the follow ing aggregate: 

tent 1: $5,000,000 annual aggregate excess of 65% of earned normal premium 

Item I1: $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss 



A M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGET 
PUBLIC I,IABILITY FUND 

REINSURA NCE PO LICY COV.ERAG~E (continued) 

The Fund and LM RFA represent a cooperative program for group fimding and risk management of 
public liability claim s of participating I,ouisiaua m unicipalities. A lthough prem ium s billed to the 
participants are determ ined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claims remains with the 

participants. 

Prior to 1993, Louisiana law limited the liability of the municipalities to $500,000 per occurrence. 
During 1993, the Louisiana Supreme Court Ievoked this lim it. The above "specific reinsurance lim its" 
for the Public Liability Fund cover claims up to $500,000. As of November 1, 1995, the statutory 
liability increased to $750,000 from $500,000. The Fund's coverage remains unchanged. 

The fnllowing are balance sheets for LM RFA for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998: 

.Assets 

1999 1998 

Cash 
hlvestulents 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivables 
Reinsurance receivable 

$ 
3 

100,326 
29,693,877 

332,194 

!3,11~i 408,258 

$ 32, 84,275 $ 30,534,655 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings 

Liabilities: 
U npaid claims reserve 
Reinsurance payable 
I)ue to affiliate 
Unearned prem ium 
Accrued expense 

Retained earnings 

- 12 - 

$ 12,220,000 $ 

300,367 
37,304 

__  __ _ _ 79~9553 
12,565,624 
19~6 L8,6 5 [ 

2,131,000 
613,738 
63,370 
39.192 

_  8_2 4242 
12,855,642 

_ _  17,6790~Q~313 

$~ 32,184~215 $ 30~534,655 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAl, RiSK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
PUBLIC LIABILI1Y FUND 

Schedule 

December 31, 1999 

The table below illu~.lrales the Fund's earned normal premium and investment income compafcd to related costs and claims expense 
(net of loss assumed by reinsurers) incurred by the Fund as of the end of 1999 and as of the end of each of the last nine years 

ENP arLd investment 
income 

Operating costs 
unallocaled 

999 1998 1997 996 ~'J 1995 1994 1993 1992 199 
~intbousands)' 

$ 5,923 $ 7,416 $ 8,198 $ 7,729 $ 7,605 $ 7,179 $ 7,170 $ 7,179 $ 6,890 $ 6,789 

2,438 3.452 3.497 3,499 3.062 2.99 

shmated inculred 
claims and 
expense, end of 
policy )cat 2.988 4,039 4.545 4,583 4,243 3.976 3,930 4,003 3.843 3.814 

Paid (cunlulati,e) 
as of 
Ind of policy 

Re-eslirnatcd incurred 
claims and clamls 
expense: 
End of policy 
)car 
()txe year later 
]wo years later 
Three years later 
Four years later 
Five )'ears later 
Six years later 
Seven )'cars latel 
Fighl years later 
N inc years later 

687 655 630 
,354 1,362 1,379 

2,505 2.137 
3.209 

4.039 
4,039 

4,545 
4,545 
4,545 

4,583 
4,583 
4,583 
4,583 

463 
1,216 
2.815 
3,524 
5.320 

4,243 
4,243 
4,243 
4,243 
4 243 

( I ) Efl~ctive January 1. 1996. the Fund accounted for invcstmenls on a fair value basis. 

See accompanying independent auditors' reporl 

528 
1.625 
2.482 
3.119 
3.400 
4.407 

976 
976 
976 
976 
976 
976 

409 
1.105 
2.019 
2.575 
3,027 
3,286 
4,944 

337 
1249 
2 668 
3297 
3.531 
3,526 
3.578 
6.276 

930 4,003 
930 4.037 
930 4.037 
930 4.037 
930 4,037 
930 4,037 
930 4.037 

4.037 

415 
984 
007 
613 
721 
807 
835 
840 
898 

479 
081 
802 
556 
752 
946 
195 
386 
485 
699 

843 3.814 
843 3.814 
877 3.814 
877 3,829 
877 3.829 
877 3,829 
877 3.829 
877 3,829 
877 3.829 

3.829 

34 34 15 
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Renort on Com nliance and oil Internal Control over Financial 
Renortin~ Based on an A udit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 
Public Liability Fund: 

W e have audited tile financial statem ents of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent A gency - Public Liability 
Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated April 19, 2000. 
W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to 
the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by tile Comptroller General of the 
United Stales. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statem ents are flee of material 
m isstatem ent, w e perform ed tests of its com pliance w ith certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracl8 and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion oil compliance with those provisions was no! an objective of 
our audit and, accordingly, w e do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncom pliance that are required to be reported under G overnm ent A uditing Standards. 

Internal Control O ver Financial ReDorlin~ 

hL planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporling in order 
to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statcm enls and 
nol to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control 
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all m aters in the internal conlrol over financial reporting 
thal m ight be m aterial w eaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
m ore of the internal control com pmm nls does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in 
amounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statements being audited m ay occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by em ployees in the normal course of perform ing their assigned fanctions. W e 
noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
m aterial w eaknesses. 

Tiffs report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - 
Public Liability Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Louisiana Com m issioner of Insurance 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana / 
A pril 19, 2000 
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INDEPENI)ENT AUDrFORS' REPORT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 
W orkers' Compensation Fund: 

W e have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - 
W orkers' Compensation Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1999, and the 
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then 
ended. These financial statem ents are the responsibility of the Fund's m anagement. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Tile financial statements of the Fund as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, were audited by other auditors whose opinion dated June 1 l, 
1999, on those statements was unqualified. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and with Government 
Auditing Standard~, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tile financial statem ents are free of 
material m isstatement. An audit includes exam ining, oil a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes ,~ssessing tile accounling principles used and 
significant estim ates m ade by m anagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenlation. 
W e believe "that am  audi't provides a reasonab'Le basis for our opi}~ion. 

In our opinion, tile financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, tile financial 
position of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - W orkers' Com pensation Fund as of 
D ecem ber 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and its cash flow s for lhe year then ended in conform ity 
w ith generally accepted accounting principles. 

As described in N ote 6 to the financial statements, the Fund changed its method of accounting for insurance 
related assessnlents. 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated April 19, 2000, on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our test!; of its compliance w ith 
certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and grants. 

O ur audit was for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the 1999 basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The supplementary inform ation included on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required par| of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the audiling 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statem ents and in our opinion, is fairly stated in all m aterial 
respects in relation to the 1999 basic financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

The financial inform ation o 
w hose report dated June 1 
m aterial respects in relation 
a whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April t9, 2000 

u page 12 for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, was audited by other auditors 
1, 1999, stated that, in their opinion, such information was fairly stated in all 
to the basic financial statem ents for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, taken as 
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LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AGENCY 

Investments (note 4) 
Acconnts receivable 

Reinsurance receivable (note 3) 
Due from affiliates - net (note 2) 
Accrued interest receivable 

BALANCE SH EETS 
D ECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

1999 1998 

$ 22,918,319 
2,044,114 

106,070 
19,640 

308.758 

$ 25,396,90 

LIA BILITIES AN D R ETA IN ED EARN IN G S 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
I)ue to affiliates - net (note 2) 
Unearned premium (note 2) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Retained earnings 

See accom panying notes to financial statements. 

- 2 - 

3,553,000 

593,710 
693,198 

23,153,443 
2,126,313 

163,807 

288.535 

$ 25.732.098 

5,839,908 7,089,485 

9,556,993 18,642,613 

$ 25,396,901 $ 25,732,098 



A M UN ICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG EN 
W O R K ERS~ CO M PENSATION FUND 

ATEM  O F REVEN UES, EXPENSES AND CItANG ES IN RETAINED EARN IN 

YEA RS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

R EVEN UES: 
Premium income 

l'xcess interest contribution (note 2) 
lnvestnlent [neoi/]~ 

Total revenue 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Adm inistrative fees (note 2) 
Reinsurance premiums (note 2) 
Service agent fccs (note 2) 
Second injury fund assessment 
O ffice of w orkers' com pensation assessm ent 

M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

Net income before cumulative effect of a 
change ill accounting principle 

Cum ulative effect of a change in 

accounting principle (Note 6) 

N et income 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom panying notes Io financial statem ents 

- 3 

$ 3,815,84 

553.019 

4,368.860 

361,357 
605,784 

381,584 
326,254 

109,800 
22,541 

56,399 

2,863,719 

1998 

6,448,011 
720,000 

1,728,348 

8,896,359 

1,809,120 
1,852,662 

644,801 

551,305 

188,453 
48,818 

40,771 

5,135,930 

1,505,141 3,760,429 

(590,761) 

914,380 3,760,429 

8,642,613 14,882,184 

$ 19,556,993 $ 18,642,613 



O UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAG EM ENT AG ENC~ 
W O R K ER S' CO M PEN SATIO N FU ND 

STATEM ENTS O F CAStt FLO W S 
YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 

l.ess adjustment for investment income 

Adjustnlcnts to reconcile net income to 
net cash (used in) operations: 
(Increase) decrease in receivables 
Decrease in unpaid claim s liability, 
net of reinsurance receivable 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 
accrued expellses, uuearlled prem ium s and 
due to affiliates 

Total adjtlstments 

Net cash (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Investment interest received 
Purchase of inveshnents 
Sale of investm ents 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

N et change in cash 

Cash, begitm ing of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statemenls. 

- 4 - 

$ 914,380 

(553,019) 

361,36 

1998 

$ 3,760,429 
(I,728,348) 

2,032.08 

139,936 (659,768) 

(865,000) (I,368,000) 

(545,457) 

(1,129,281) (2,573,225) 

1,420,639 

(7,617,651) 
6,964,932 

767,920 

(541,144) 

1,257,686 

(12,458,533) 
11,741,991 

541,144 



LO U ISIANA M UNICIPA L RISK M ANA G EM ENT AG ENCY 
W O R K ERS' C O M PEN SA TIO N FUND 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

SIG NIFICANT ACO UNTING PO LICIES 

(a) Background and i~Tnancial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency (LM RMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's compensation, accident and health, and public liability 
coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local 
governm ent subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The LM RM A- 
Workers' Compensation Fund (the Fund) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and 
adm inister, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal risk 
maaagem ent, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a com prehensive loss coatrol 
program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the fund must be members of the Louisiana 
M unicipal Association; a mem ber m ay w ithdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fund 
underv, riting and rate-setting policies have been established by the board of the Fund, after 
consultation w ith the actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, m em bers would only 
be responsible for their respective outstanding claims. 

l,ouisiana M unicipal Association (LM A) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is 
incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as the 
adm inistrator for LM RM A . 

Risk Management, Inc. (RM I) is a third-party service agent primarily for LM RMA insurance funds 
RM I, a l.nuisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

I,ouisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency (LM RFA) was formed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 
33:1349(e). LM RFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess fimds to 
provide reinsurance. Adm inistration of the Agency is vested ia the Executive Board of I,M A. 
LM RFA reinsures the LM RM A W orkers' Com pensation Fund. A s of Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, 
there w ere 210 and 199 participating m unicipalities, respectively. 

The various I,M RM A Funds, LM A and LM RFA are all affi liated through com mon m em bership and 
m anagement control. A lthough all of these entities are related parties, their various fund balances 
are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented 
as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance w ith GASB 10 and 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accounting 
and the flow of econom ic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless 
those pronouncem ents conflict w ith or contradict G ASB pronouncem ents. 

- 5- 



AN A M UN IC IPA L R ISK M A NA G EM ENT A G EN CY 
W O RK ER S' CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

1. SIG NIFICANT ACO UNTING PO LICIES 

(c) Investments 

(continued) 

Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, 
consisting primarily of U .S. treasury obligations w ith a maturity of one year or less at tim e of 
purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if available; 
if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses 
on investments recorded at fair value are included in investm ent income. Investments include 
certificates of deposit, m oney m arket accounts, repurchase agreem ents and U.S. government Agency 
and Treasury obligations. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 

Prenlinm s arc recoguized as income over the 
adjustments to annual preuliulns are considered 
year they become known. 

life of tile policies as they become earned. Any 
to be a change in estimate and are recognized in the 

(e) UnpaM Claims Liability 

Tile Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of tile nltimate cost of claims (including 
fimtrc claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims tbat havc 
been incurred but not reported. The length of time for whicb such costs m ust be estimated varies 
depending on the coverage involved. Estimated am ounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid 
claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs depend on 
such com plex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the 
process used in com puting claim s liability does not necessarily result iu an exact amount. Claim s 
liabilities are recom puted periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to 
produce current estim ates that reflect recent settlem ents, claim s frequency, and other econoulic and 
social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated filture claims costs is implicit 
i~ the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation 
and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments 
to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in tile periods in which they are made. Tile 
carry ing amount of liabilities for claim s losses and claim s expense are presented at present value in 
the financial statements. The costs associated w ith new and renewed contracts and acquisition costs 
are im material to the financial statements and are expensed when incurred. Such reserves have been 
discounted at 5.8% at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts 
w ith banks. Because certificates of deposit, m oney m arkets and repurchase agreem ents are usually 
purchased with maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investments. 

- 6 - 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL R ISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
' C O M PEN SA 

NO TES TO FINANC IAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

I. SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(g) Reinsurance 
The Fund uses reinsurance agreem ents to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. 
Reinsurance perm its recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge 
the prim ary liability of the Fund as the direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Ftmd does not 
reporl reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by 
reinsurers. A s of M ay 1, 1986, LM RFA became the reinsurer for the Fund. 

(It) Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the lnterna 
Revenue Code. 

(i) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Funds has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting 
of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conform ity w ith generally accepted 
accounting principles. Actual restdts could differ from those estim ates. 

2. RELATED PA RTY TRA NSACTIO NS 

(a) Fees and Services 
LM A, RM I and LM RFA provides services related to the self-insurance fimds operated for tile 
benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of tile 
respective earned normal premiums (ENP) as follows: 

1999 1998 

Expenses: 
Admiuistrative fee - LM A (2.45% of 
ENP plus interest earned) $ 605,784 $ 1,852,662 

Service Agent - RM I (8.55% of ENP) 551.305 

Reinsurance - LM RFA (10% of ENP) $ 381,584 $ 644,80 

LM RFA reiusurance recoveries 

$ 323,382 $ 
(166,603) 
(176,419) 

1,570,260 
19,642 

.~ ,~3_~ 

1.583.866 

368,158 $ 653,524 

IrM A receives all interest earnings of LM RM A as part of this adm inislratiw~ fee. Amouuts have 
been returned by LM A to the Fund based on the Board's discretion. 

- 7 - 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
W O R K ERS' CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

N O TES T 
D ECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

During 1998, LM A's board resolved to rebate $600,000 of the 1997 earned administrative fees back 
to the fund. This amount is included in premium income 1998. The $720,000 of 1996 earn ed 
adm inistrative fees distributed by LM A in 1997 is included in total revenues in 1998. 

During 1999, LM A's board resolved to rebate $725,737 of the 1998 earned administrative fees back 
to the Fund. This amount is included in unearned prem ium s which the Fund w ill use in the form of 
prem imn reduction to m unicipalities in 2000. 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPA ID CLAIM S R ESERVE 

The following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years ended December 
31, 1999 and 1998: 

Liab 
Less 
Liab 

1999 1998 
(Amounts in thousands) 

ty for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) $ 
Reinsurance recoverables 

10,161 
5.743 

ty for unpaid losses at beginning of year (net) _4~4_18 

Net incurred related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

N et paid related to 
Currenl year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 
Reinsurance recoverables 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 

1,343 
18 

_1361 

463 
__ __ !~763 

2~22~  

3,553 
__ __ .4_  800 

$ I 1,941 
6A~55 

_  5,786 

1,670 
139 

L%Q9 

469 
229808 
3 1A7277 

4,418 
5.743 

In addition to the tmpaid claims covered by the reinsurers, there are $106,070 and $163,807 of paid claims 
which are recoverable from the reinsurer at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Settled claims 
have not exceeded insurance coverage. 

]'he Fund's claims payable have been discounted based on the Fund's anticipated payoul patterns and a 
discount rate assum ption of 5.8%  for Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, which m anagem ent expects to 
approximate the interest earnings over the payout period. The effect of the reserve discotmts was 
$665,000 and $86 1,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

- 8- 



O UISIANA M UNICIPA L RISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENC Y 
W O R K ER S' C O M PEN SATIO N FUN D 

NO TES T(I FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
D ECEM BER 31, 1999 AN D 1998 

D EPO SITS A ND IN V ESTM ENTS 

The Fund must comply with Rule N umber 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule N umber 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these Fund's shall be lim ited to 
institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits in 
financial institutions m ay exceed the federally insured amount in any one financial institution, as long as 
the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided 
profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution. In regard to deposits and 
investm ents, the Agency is in com pliance w ith these revised provisions during the year ended December 
31, 1999 and 1998. 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U .S. G overmnent and ils agencies, as well as financial institutions. 
Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase agreements. 
During 1995. the Fund changed its policy of maintaining a cash account into wire-transferring cash as 
needed from investments to support disbursem ents. Consequently, a zero cash balance is now maintained. 

The Fund's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Fund at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name. Category  2 
inchldes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for w hich the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust department or agent in the Ftmd's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investm ents for which file securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, 
but-not in the Fund's name. The amortized cost of the Fund's investments are $23,360,985 and 
$22,785,359 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The fair value for investments by security type 
at Decem ber 3 I. 1999 and 1998 are as follows: 

Certificates of deposit $ 
M oney m arkel accounts 
U.S. G overnm ent Agency 

Obligations 
U .S. Treasury Obligations 

1999 

Fair 
value 

100,000 
492,507 

10,127,389 
12,198,423 

$ 22,918,319 

Category 

1 
1 

1998 

Fair 
value 

100,000 
1,347,984 

11,202,608 
10.502.851 

$ 23,153,443 

The scheduled m aturities of investments held were as follows at Decem ber 31 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

- 9 - 

1999 1998 

$ 7,110,718 $ 
8,806,301 
4,803,037 
2,198,263 

Category 

5,021,380 
11,853,:276 
4,302,954 
1.975.833 

23.153,443 



4. D E 

LO U ISIAN A M UN IC IPA L RISK M A NA G EM EN T A G EN C Y 
W O R K ER S' C O M PENSATIO N FUN D 

NO TES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 
D ECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

hlcluded in investment balances as of Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 are derivative investm ents. These 
investments included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating rate securities 
with a market value of $1,557,765 and $2,147,443 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 
These derivative investments are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience future market 
value lluctuations. 

Investment income for tile years ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 consists of the follow ing 

Interest illeom e 
Realized gains (losses) - net 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during tile year 

5. REINSURA NCE PO LICY CO VERA G E 

$ 1,381,516 
( 17,747) 
( 8192 5_0) 

1998 

$ 1,303,931 
21,498 
402,919 

~;, 5 53~019 $== /,728,348 

During the periods ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, LM RFA provided reinsurance to the Fund w ith 
the follow ing aggregate coverage. 

tem 

tern  

$2,000,000 annual aggregate ill excess of 80% of earned normal premium 

$2,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $175,000 each and ever)' loss 

The Fund and I,M RFA represent a cooperative program for group funding and risk management of public 
liability, workers' com pensation and accident and health claim s of participating Louisiana m unicipalities. 
Although prem iums billed to the participants are determ ined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for 
claim s remain w ith the participants. 

The follow ing are balance sheets for LM RFA for the years ended Decem ber 3 I, 1999 and 1998 

Assets 

Cash 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivables 
lnvestlnents 
Reinsurance receivable 

- 10 - 

1999 1998 

$ 100,345 $ 
362,385 
50,204 

31,658,225 
13.116 

100,326 
332..194 

29,693,877 
408.258 

3(I.534.655 



M UNICIPAL R ISK M ANAG EM ENT AG ENCY 
W O RK ERS' CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

NO TES TO FINANC IAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 A ND 1998 

5. REINSURANCE POLICY COVERAGE (continued) 

Liabilities 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings 

U npaid claim s reserve 
Reinsurance payable 
Due to affiliate 
Unearned prem ium 
Accrued expense 

Retained earnings 

$ 12,220,000 $ 

300,367 
37,304 
7.953 

12,565,624 
19.618.651 

2,131,000 
613,738 
63,370 
39,192 
8.342 

12,855,642 
17,679,013 

$ 32,184,275 $ 30,534,655 

Effective January I, 1995, LM RFA purchased reinsurance for w orkers' com pensation claim s from a third 
party reinsurer. The third party provided reinsurance to LM RFA with the following aggregate coverage. 

$ 1,000,000 annual aggregate 

Item 11: $1,000,000 each and every loss if1 excess of $50,000 each and every loss up to $750,000 

The third party reinsurer is only responsible for those claim s incurred subsequent to January 1, 1995 
I,M RFA is the leinsurer for the claim s incurred during the years prior to January 1, ] 995. 

6. CHANG E 1N ACCO UNTING FO R INSURA NCE RELATED ASSESSM ENTS 



SCIIEDU|,E 

Ihe table below illustrates the Ftllld's earned norn~al premium and investrnenl income compared to related costs and claims 
expense incurred by the Fund as of the end of 1998 and as of the end of each of the last nine years, 

ENP and invest. 
ment income 

Operating costs, 
unal]ocated 

claim~ and expense 
crld o f policy )car 

Rc-cstunated incurred 
c]aims and clailnS 

I~:rease ~decrease) in 
estimated incurred 
claims and expense 
f?om end of policy 
year 

999 1998 1997 

473 

463 

473 

8,896 

3.327 

4,621 

469 
1.067 

4,621 
4.052 

8,805 

2,836 

4,979 

811 
1.377 
1.726 

4,979 
5,409 
5.409 

996 II~ 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

8,094 

2,889 

5,811 

725 
1,218 
1.280 
1,376 

5,811 
5,811 
5,882 
5.882 

9,506 

3,380 

9,569 

2.991 

9,886 

3.136 

1,007 
1,940 
2.276 
2,480 
2.620 

6,512 
6,413 
6,413 
6,593 
6,593 

819 
1,736 
2,137 
2.456 
2,511 
2,633 

6,352 
6,670 
6.670 
6,670 
6,670 
6.670 

430 71 81 318 

flbclive January I. 1996, the Fund accounted for investments on a fair value basis 

Sec accompanying independent au0dors' report 

1,033 
2,109 
2,611 
2,989 
3,129 
3,157 
3,166 

7,041 
6,770 
7,163 
7,163 
7,163 
7,163 
7.163 

7,808 

2,328 

6,658 

2,102 

1,343 
3,240 
4,089 
4,472 
4,708 
4,919 
5,020 
5,075 

5,913 
5,656 
5,656 
6,020 
6,020 
6,020 
6,020 
6.020 

1,323 
2,712 
3,741 
4,379 
4,740 
4.989 
5,110 
5,146 
5.150 

4,678 
5,309 
5,270 
5,270 
5,270 
5,270 
5,270 
5,258 
5,258 

1.576 
3.342 
4,157 
4.691 
5.182 
5.518 
5,692 
5,783 
5.786 
5.808 

526 
825 
825 
744 
744 
744 
744 
744 
739 
737 

07 580 209 
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Renort on Com nliance and on Internal Control O ver Financia 
R el)ortin~, Based on an A udit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed in 

Accordance with Governm ent A uditine Standards 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 
W orkers' Com pensation Fund: 

W e have audited lhe financial statements of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - W orkers' 
Com pensation Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon 
dated April 19, 2000. W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and 
thc standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnent Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Com ptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of m aterial 
m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its com pliance w ith certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance w ith which could haw : a direct and m aterial effect on tile determ ination of financial 
slalelncnl alOOLlUIS, ttowever, providing an opinion on com pliance with those provisions was nol awl 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncom pliance that are required to be reported under G overnm em  AuditilJg Standards. 

lernal Control Over Financial Reoortine 

In planning and perforating our audit, w e considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statcm enls and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. O ur consideration of 
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all m atters in the internal control 
over financial reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statem ents 
being audited may occur and not be detected w ithin a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be m aterial weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - 
W orkers' Com pensation Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Com m issioner of 
Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 

specified parties. ~~ t,,.o ,~--~ ~ A~ ~  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April 19, 2000 
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EPENDE 

O fficers and Trustees 
Louisiana M nnicipal Association 

Unemployment Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the accom panying balance sheet of Louisiana M unicipal A ssociation - Llnem ploym enl 
Compcnsafion Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1999, and the related 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows tbr the year then ended. 
These financial statements are the responsibilib' of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statem ents based on our audit. The financial slatemenls of the Ftmd as of and 
for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1998, were audited by other auditors w hose opinion dated June 1 I, 1999, on 
those statem ents w as unqualified. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and w ith Governnwnt 
Auditing Standards, isstted by the Com ptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
m aterial m isstatem ent. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the am ounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounling principles used and 
significant estimates made by m anagement, as well as evah|ating the overall financial statement presentation. 
W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the 1999 financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the 
financial position of Louisiana M unicipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund as of December 
31, 1999, and the results of ils operations and its cash flow s for lhe year then ended in conform ity w ith 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance w ilh Government Audithlg Standards, w e have also issued a repo11, dated A pril t9, 2000, on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and om tests of its compliance with 
cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April 19, 2000 

Bc~lon Rouge " Donaldsonville ~ Gonzclles ' New Orleans ~ SI Froncisville 
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Cash in banks (note 3) 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

hwestments (note 3) 

LO UISIAN A M UNIC IPAL ASSO CIATIO N 

BALANC E SH EETS 
EC EM BER 3L 1999 AND 

ASSETS 

IN 

1999 1998 

$ 6,413,37 

Liabilities: 
Accrued expenses 

Unpaid claims liability (note 4) 
Policyholder dividend payable (note 2) 

Retained earnings 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 

- 2 - 

6,962 
39,920 
00,000 

$ 6.451,540 

59,154 
63,420 
00.000 

46.882 222.574 

6,266,489 6,228,966 

$ 6.413.37 $ 6,451,540 



LO UISIAN A M UN IC IPAL A SSO C IATIO N 
UN EM PLO Y M ENT CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

R EVEN UES: 

I)relniunl into[lie 
||'JvesWi'tenl incom e 

Total revenues 

EX PEN SES: 

Claims expense (note 4) 
Service agent 

Policyholder dividend (note 2) 
M iscellaneous 

N et incom e 

Total expenses 

Retaincd earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents. 

- 3- 

198,344 
136,263 

334.607 

163,349 

22,963 
I00,000 
10,772 

297.084 

1998 

81,561 
588,586 

670.147 

214,062 

22,297 
100,000 
1,255 

337.614 

37,523 332,533 

6,228,966 5,896,433 

$ 6,266,489 $ 6,228.966 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATIO N 
UN EM PLO YM ENT CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
N et incom e 

Less adjustment for investment income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income 
to net cash used in operations: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
Increase (decrease) in unpaid claims reserve 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and 
policyholder dividend payable 

Total adjuslments 

N et cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchases of investm ents 
Sale or m aturity of investm ents 
Interest incom e received 

N et cash provided by investing activities 

N et increase in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

- 4 - 

1999 1998 

$ 37,523 
(136,263) 

$ 332,533 
(588,586) 

(98,740) (256,053) 

(60,724) 
(23,500) 

18,614 
19,656 

(52,192) 152,440 

(136,416) 90.710 

(235,156) (65,343) 

(1,374,280) 
1,300,160 
339,710 

265.590 

30,434 

75.147 

105,58 

(4,770,685) 
4,441,650 
435.685 

06.650 

41,307 

33,840 

75.147 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATION 

DECEM BER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

SIG N IFIC AN T A CC O U NTIN G PO LIC IES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 
Louisiana M unicipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (the Fund) was formed 
under Louisiana Revised Statutes 23:1552. The Fund consists of Louisiana municipalities joined 
together in self-insurance agreements with respect to unemploymet~t compensation fund 
insurance. Adm inistration of the Fund is vested in the Executive Board of Louisiana M unicipal 
Association. 

I .ouisiana M unicipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and 
is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as 
the adm inistrator for the Fund. 

As of December 3 I, 1999, there were 5,694 participants and 13g participating municipalities. As 
of l)ecember 31, 1998, there were 5,722 participants and 135 participating m unicipalities. 

The t'uud and LM A are affiliated through com m on m embership and management coutrol. 
A lthough both of these entities are related parties, their eqnity is available only to the individual 
entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" 
entity in accordance with GASB 10 and GA SB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of 
accounting and the flow of econom ic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its 
Ol:,erations unless those pronouncem ents conflict or contradict G ASB prononncem ents. 

(c) Cash and Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in denm nd deposit accounts 
w ith banks. Because certificates of deposit, money m arkets and repurchase agreements are 
usually purchased w ith m aturities of 90 days or more or are reinvested continuously, they are 
classified as investments. Deposits are carried at cost and are separately displayed on lhe 
balance sheets as cash in banks. 

(d) htvestments 
Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and m oney m arket investments, 
consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one ),ear or less at time of 
purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and losses 
on investments recorded at fair value are included in investment incom e. Included in investments 
are certificates of deposit w ith original m aturities of greater than 90 days, deposits in money 
m arket accounts, certificates of deposit, investments in U.S. Government Agency Obligations 
and Treasury aud short-term repurchase agreem ents. 

- 5 - 



U 
LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

ECEM BER 31. 1999 AN D 1998 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 
Claim s expense consists of estim ated amounts for claim s incurred during the current year and 
adjustments to the accounting estimate of prior years' claims expense. Beeause tile adjustment to 
prior years' loss amounts represents changes in accounting estimates, these changes are reflected 
in earnings in the period they become known. The Fund establishes claim liabilities based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been reported, but not yet settled. 

09 Income Tares 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and I I 5(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(g) Use of Estimates 
M anagem ent of the Fund has made a num ber of estimates and assmnptions relating to the 
reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conform ity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ fiom those estimates. 

2. R ELATED PARTY TRANSACTIO NS 

In 1998, the IrM A board approved a rebate of $100,000 of 1997 interest earnings to be paid to 
m embers of the Fund in 1999. This rebate was prorated based on prem ium paym ents for the year 1997 
and applied to those m unicipalities that w ere m em bers of the Fund as of December 3 I, 1997. 

In 1999, the LM A board approved a rebate of $100,000 of 1998 interest earnings to be paid to 
members of the Fund in 2000. This rebate is to be prorated on prem ium payments for the year 1998 and 
paid to those m unicipalities that were mem bers of the Fund as of Decem ber 31, 1998. 

3. CASI! A ND INVESTM ENTS 

Cash in banks is carried at cost. Cerlificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase 
agreem ents are included in investments as their average maturity is greater than 9(I days and the 
am ounts are reinvested continuously. 

- 6 - 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

3. CASH AND INVESTM ENTS (continued) 

The demand deposits are categorized to give an indication of tile level of risk assumed at year end. 
"Insured" deposits are those balances prolecled by federal depository insurance or pledged collaleral. 
"Uninsm'ed" deposits are those balances in excess of federal depository insurance. Bank account 
balances and certificates of deposit as listed below are either insured or secured by collateral as 
follows: 

]nsured 
Uninsured 

1999 1998 

05,581 $ 75,147 

05,581 $ 75,147 

Under Rule N um ber 4 of the Com m issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, tile Fund may invest any 
surplus monies in obligations of the U .S. Governm ent and its Agencies, as well as financial 
institutions. Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase 
agreem ents. 

The Fund's investments are categorized as follows to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by 
the Fund at year-end. Category i securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name. 
Category  2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the 
broker's or deafer's trust departm ent or agent in the Fund's nam e. Category 3 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investm ents for w hich the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust 
departm ent or agent, but not in the Fund's name. 

The amortized cost of the Fund's investments is $6,342,728 and $6,287,566 at December 31, 1999 and 
1998, respectively. The fair value for investm ents by security type at Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 is 
as follows: 

1999 

Fair 
V alue 

M oney market accounts $ 209,744 
U .S. Governm ent Agency 
obligations 3,509,055 

U.S. Treasury securities 2,404,880 

$ 6,123,679 

- 7- 

_ .
C ategory 

l 
1 

1998 

Fair 
Value 

499,668 

3,746,216 
2.066.910 

$ 6,312,794 

Category 



U 
LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATIO N 

3. CASIt AND INVESTM ENTS (continued) 

The scheduled maturities of securities held were as follows at December 3 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

1999 1998 

1,700,870 $ 
2,279,224 
1,041,239 
1.102.346 

1,151,717 
3,1)58,635 
I,I)59,455 
1,042,987 

6,123,679 $ 6,312,794 

Included in investment balances as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 are derivative investments. These 
iuvestmenls included U .S. Treasury strips and collateralized mortgage obligations w ith market vahles 
of $788,786 and $878,034 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. These derivative 
investments are interest rate sensitive, and as a result, could experience significant future market value 
fhlctuations. 

nvestment income for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 consists office following 

]nterest Jrlconle 

P, ealized gains (losses) - net 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year 

- 8- 

$ 384,883 
( 4,342) 
( 244,278 

$ 296,188 
145,965 

IL 136,263 $ _ , 588,586 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATION 

D ECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

4. CLA IM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S RESERVE 

D 

Tile following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years ended 
Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998: 

Unpaid claims and claims adjustment 
expenses at beginning of year 

ncurrcd claims and claim adjustment 
expenses - 
provision for insured events of the 
current year 

1999 

(in thousands) 

$ 63 $ 44 

63 214 

Paym ents: 

Claims and claim adjustment expenses 
attributable to insured events of current 
year (123) (151) 

(:laims and claim adjustment expenses 
attributable to insured events of prior 

years 

Total paym ents 

(63) (44) 

(186) ~195) 

Tolal unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
expenses at end of year $ ~  40 $ 63 

Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

- 9 - 
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R eoort on Com olianee and on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

in Accordance w ith Governm ent Auditin~ Standards 

O fficers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Association 
Unemployment Com pensation Fund 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of Louisiana M unicipal Association - Unemployment 
Compensation Fund (the Fund) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report 
thereon dated April 19, 2000. W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing 
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverm nent Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of oblaiuing reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial slatemenls are free of material 
m isstatem ent, we performed tests of its com pliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracls and 
grants, noncompliance w ith which could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of financial 
statem ent am ounts. However, providing an opinion on com pliance w ith those provisions w as not an 

objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncom pliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

lntem al Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on thc financial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of 
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all nmtters in the internal control 
over financial reporting that m ighl be m aterial w eaknesses. A m aterial w eakness is a condition in w hich the 
dcsign or operation of one or m ore of the intern al control components does nol reduce to a relativcly low 
level the risk lhal m isstatements in amounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statements 
being audited m ay occur and not be detected w ithin a timely period by employees in the normal coursc of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be m aterial weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of Louisiana M unicipal Association - 
Unemploym ent Compensation Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Comm issioner of 
Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than lhcsc 
specified parties. 

Baton Rouge,/_,ouisiaoa 
April 19, 2000 
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NDEPEND ENT AUD ITO R S' R EPO RT 

O ffi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency 

W e have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency (a quasi-public 
organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1999, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes 
in retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statem ents are the responsibility of 
the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. The financial statements of the Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, were audited by 
othcr auditors whose opinion dated June 1 l, 1999, on those statements was unqualified. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and w ith Goverm nent 
Auditing Standard~, issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statem ents are free of 
m aterial m isstatem ent. A n audit includes exam ining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting lhe am ounts and 
disclosures in the financial statem ents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimaleg m ade by managem ent, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the fnancial 
position of Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency as of December 31, 1999, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flow s fnr the year then ended in conform ity w ith generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated April 19, 2000, on our 
consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its com pliance with eerlain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

O ur audit w as m ade for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the 1999 basic financial statem ents taken as a 
wholc. The supplementary inform ation included on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required parl of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all nmterial 
respects in relation to the 1999 basic financial statem ents taken as a w hole. 

The financial infornmtion on page 12 for the year ended December 31, 1998, was audited by other auditors 
whose report dated June 11, 1999, stated that, in their opinion, such information was fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1998, taken as a wholc. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April 19, 2000 

Baton Rouge ' Donaldsonville ' Go~lzales ~ New Orleans ~ St Fraf~cisville 
Associated offico~ in Ptincipol Cit;~ of the IInil~d .~foto~ 



Cash (note 4) 
hwestments (note 4) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivables 
Rcinsurance recewable 

LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERV E FU ND A G EN C Y 

BA LANCE SH EETS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

$ 100,345 
31,658,225 

362,385 
50,204 
13,116 

$ 32,184,275 

LIA BILITIES A N D R ETA IN ED EAR N IN G S 

Liabili,ties: 
Unpaid claims reserve (note 3) 
t)nearned pren~ium s 
Reinsurance payable 

Due to affilia,tes (n~te 2) 
A ccrued expenses 

Retained earnings 

See accom panying notes 'to financial s,tatem ents. 

- 2- 

12,220,000 
37,304 

300,367 
7.953 

1998 

100,326 
29,693,877 

332,194 

408.258 

$ 30,534,655 

12,565,624 12,855,642 

19,618,651 17,679,013 

$ 32,184,275 $ 30,534,655 



LO U ISIAN A M UN ICIP A L 

STATEM ENTS O F R EVEN UES. EXPENSES AND CH ANG ES IN R ETA INED EARN ING S 
Y EAR S ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

R EVEN UES: 

Premium income (note 2) 
Investm ent incorne 

Total revenue 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Reinsurance prem ium 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

N et incolne 

Relained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom panying notes to firmncial statem ents 

- 3- 

1999 1998 

889,284 
702.093 

2,591,377 

516,874 

75,691 
59.174 

651,739 

2,362,234 
2,112,148 

4,474,382 

(171,696) 
361,122 

46.237 

235,663 

939,638 4,238,719 

7,679,013 I3,440,294 

$ 19,618,651 $ 17.679,013 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE FUND AG ENCY 

STATEM ENTS O F CASH FLOW S 
Y EA R S EN D ED D ECEM BER 31. 1999 A N D 1998 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net incom e 

Less adjustment for investment income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash provided by (used in) operations: 

Decrease in due from affiliates reinsurance 
receivable, other receivables 

(Decrcase) increase in unpaid claims 
reserve 

(Decrease) increase in unearned premiums due to 
affiliale, reinsurance payable, and accrued 

cxpenses 

Total adjustments 

1999 1998 

$ 1,939,638 
(702,093) 

1,237,545 

344,938 

89,000 

4,238,719 

(2,112,148) 

2.|26.571 

286,263 

(2,751,000) 

(379,018) 26,117 

54.920 (2,438,620) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,292,465 (312,049) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of investnlents 

Salehnaturity of investments 
Investm ent interest received 

(9,812,839) 
6,784,016 
1,736,377 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,292,446) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statements 

- 4 - 

19 

00,326 

00,345 

(11,348,661) 
9,913,827 
1,746,865 

312,03 

(18) 

00,344 

00,326 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE EUND AG ENCY 

NO TES TO FINA NCIAL STATEM ENTS 
D ECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

1. SIG NIFIC ANT ACCO UNTING PO LIC IES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency (LM RFA or the Fund) was formed under 
Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management 
agencies pooling excess funds to provide reinsurance. Adm inistration of the Agency is 
vested in the Executive Board of LM A . LM RFA reinsures the Louisiana M unicipal Risk 
M anagement Agency (LM RM A) Public Liability, W orkers' Compensation, and Accident and 
llealth Funds. LM RFA also reinsures four m unicipalities. 

LM RM A was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's 
com pensation, accident and health, and public liability coverage for its mem ber 
organizations. In accordance w ith Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local govern ment 
subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The progrom's general 
objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member local 
govermnental subdivisions, a program of interlocal risk m anagement, to obtain lower costs 
for that coverage, and to develop a com prehensive loss control program . Local govermnental 
subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the Louisiana M unicipal Association; a 
member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fund underwriting and rate- 
setting policies have been established by the Board of LM RM A after consultation with the 
actuaries. If ttle assets of the Fund were to be exhansted, members would only be 
responsible for their respective outstanding claims. 

l.onisiana M unicipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiaua 
and is incorporated as a non-profit cnrporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. 
LM A acts as the adm inistrator for LM RFA . 

Risk M anagement, Inc. (RM 1) is a third-party service agent primarily for I.M RM A insurance 
fimds and LM RFA. RM I, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

The various LM RM A Funds, LM RFA, IrM A and RM I are all affiliated through com mon 
membership and management control. Although all of these entities are related parties, their 
various equity accounts are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this 
reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance w ith G A SB 
l0 and GASB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
Tile Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of 
accounting and tile flow of econom ic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for 
its operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncem euts. 
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LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL 
R ESERV E FUN D A G ENC Y 

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and m otley m arket investments, 
consisting primarily of U.S. Treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time 
of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and 
losses on investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. [uvestments 
include certificates of deposit, money market accounts, repurchase agreements, and U.S. 
government Agency and Treasury obligations. 

(e) 

Premium Income and Due from Affiliates 
The prem ium incom e of LM RFA collected in the current year is based on a percentage of 
earned normal premium of LM RM A workers' compensation and public liability funds (see 
note 2). For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, LM RFA provided reinsurance 
directly to muuicipalities for a total premium of $166,658 and $125,724, respectively. The 
costs associated with new and renewed contracts, as acquisition costs, are im m aterial to the 
financial statem ents and are expensed when incurred. 

Utff~aid Claim s Liability 

The Fund establishes claim s liabilities based on estimates of the ultim ate cost of claim s 
(including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of 
claim s that have been incurred but not reported. The length of tim e for which such costs 
m ust be estim ated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estim ated am ounts of 
reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claim s are deducted from the liability for unpaid claim s. 
Because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in 
doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in com puting claims 
liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as 
general liability. Claims liabilities are recom puted periodically using a variety of actuarial 
and statistical techniques to produce current estim ates that reflect recent settlem ents, claim s 
frcqueucy, and other econom ic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation 
of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both 
on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on other factors that are considered to 
be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or 
credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. The carry ing amount of liabilities 
for claim s losses and claim s expenses are presented at present value in the financial 
statem ents. Such reserves have been discounted at 5.8%  at Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998. 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in-denmnd deposit 
accounts w ith banks. Because certificates of deposit, money m arkets and repurchase 
agreements are usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as 
investments (see note 4). 
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LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE FUND AG ENCY 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 AND 1998 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING I'OLICIES (continued) 

(g) Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections "/701 and 115(I) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

(11) Use of Estimates 
M anagem ent of the Fund has made a number of estim ates and assumptions relating to tile 
reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conform ity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. RELATE, I) PARTY TRANSACTIO NS 

LM A, RM I and LM RFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the 
benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the 
respective earned normal premiums (ENP) as follows: 

Reinsurance incom e: 
LM RM A : 
Public Liability 
W orkers' Com pensation 

Due (to) from affiliate: 
LM RM A : 
Public Liability 
W orkers' Com pensation 

R einsurance 
Fee 1999 1998 

- 7 - 

24.5%  ENP $ 10.0%  ENP ,341,042 $ 
381.584 

722.626 

1,522,415 
644.801 

$ 2,167,216 

$ (123,948)$ (57,334) 
(17__6~41_~). __ _  (6,036) 

$ (300,:36~ $ ~ = (63,370/ 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
R ESER V E FUN D A G EN CY 

3. C LAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S RESERVE 

Tile follow ing represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for tile years ended 
D ecem ber 31, 1999 and 1998: 

Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsurance recoverables (net) 
Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (net) 

Net incurred related to 
Curreut year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

N et paid related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 
Reinsurance recoverables (net) 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 

1999 1998 
(Amounts in thousands) 

12,131 $ 14,882 

L2 131 

1,556 
[ 1~039_I 

5L7_ 

144A 82882 

1,725 
.__ .(h89~ ) 
( _ 172) 

140 
42_ 8 2~ 343_9_ 
428 25=77_9 

12,220 12,131 

$ _ -- A2~220 $ = 2 13!: 

The Fund's claim s payable have been discounted based on the Fund's anticipated payout patterns 
and a discount rate assum ption of 5.8%  for Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, which m anagement 
expects to approximate the interest earnings over the payout period. The effect of the reserve 
discounts was $4,746,000 and $5,369,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

4. D EPO SrFS AND INVESTM ENTS 

LM RFA m ust com ply w ith Rule N um ber 4 of the Com m issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these agencies shall be 
lim ited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state 
institution. Deposits in financial institutions may exceed the federally insured amount in any one 
financial inslitution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the 
combination of surplus, undivided profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial 
institution. In regard to deposits and investments, the Fund was in compliance with these revised 
provisions during the years ended Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998. 

The demand deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at 
year end. "Insured" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurance. 
"Uninsured" deposits are those balances in excess of federal depository iusurance. 

- 8- 



LO UISIANA M UN ICIPA L 
R ESER VE FUN D A G EN C Y 

DEPO SITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

Insured 
Uninsured 

continued) 

1998 

$ 100,345 $ 100,326 

$ 100,345 $ 100,326 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest 
any surphls monies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, as well as financial 
institutions. Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and 
repurchase agreem ents. 

Catcgory I investments include securities which are insured or registered or securities held by 
LM RFA or its agent in LM RFA 's name. The U.S. Governnlent agency obligation investments are 
direct obligalions registered in tile nam e of tile Fund and held by the Fund's investm ent agent. 
M oney m arket accounts are collateralized by obligations of the U .S. Government registered in the 
name of and held by the Fund's agent. 

Tile amortized cost of the Fund's investments are $32,220,841 and $29,228,14!) at l)ccember 31, 
1999 and 1998, respectively. The fair value for investments by type at Decem ber 31, 1999 and 
1998, are as follows: 

1999 

Fair 
Value 

I)ccem ber 31: 
M oney market accounts $ 3,244,528 
U.S. Governm ent Agency 
Obligations 18,151,681 

U.S. Treasury O bligations 10,262
_,016 

_ __
Category 

- 9 - 

1998 

Fair 
Value 

$ 2,900,342 

16,879,272 
9,914,263 

$ 29.693.877 

Category 
. 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERV E FUND AG ENCY 

NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTM ENTS (coot;,o~ted) 

The scheduled maturities of securities held were as follows at Decem ber 31 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

1999 1998 

$ 8,465,898 $ 
11,467,379 
3,984,443 
7.740.505 

7,689,358 
11,298,362 
5,210,062 
5.496.095 

29.693.877 

Included in investment balances as of Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998 are derivative investments. 
These investments included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating 
rate securities with a market value of $2,800,206 and $3,357,501 as of I)ecember 31, 1999 and 
1998, respectively. These derivative investments are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could 
experience filttue market value fluctuations. 

nvestm ent i~come for the years ended December 3 I, 1999 and 1998 consists of the follow ing: 

Interest income $ 1,744,326 $ 1,751,332 
Realized gains (losses) net ( 13,888) ( 16,172) 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year ( 1,028,345_) .__~3_~ 988 

5. REINSURANCE POLICY COVERA G E 

~_702,093 $ 2~l [2~!48 

LM RM A and LM RFA represent a cooperative program for group funding and risk m anagement of 
public liability claim s of participating Louisiana nm nicipalities. A lthough prem iums billed to the 
participants are determ ined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claim s rem ains w ith the 
participants. 
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LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
R ESER V E FUND A G ENC Y 

NO TES TO FINANCIA L STATEM ENTS 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 AND 1998 

REINSURANCE POLICY COVERAGE (continued) 

Asst~ med" 

For the year ended December 31, 1999, LM RFA provided reinsnrance to LM RM A Accident and 
Itealth, Public Liability and W orkers' Compensation Funds w ith the follow ing aggregate coverage: 

W orkers' Compensation Fund 

Item I 

Item I 

$2,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 80% of earned normal premium 

$2,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $175,000 each and every loss 

Public Ijab~  Fund 

Item I: $5,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 65%o of earned normal premium 

tem 11: $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss 

Accident and Health Fund 

tern I: Annual aggregate in excess of 125% of annual aggregate retention (85% of 
Earned Normal Premium), listed at a minimum of earned normal premium 

Item 11: $950,000 each and every loss in excess of $50,000 each and every loss 

The I.M RM A A ccident and Health Fund obtained com m ercial reinsurance effective January  
1995 and is not covered by LM RFA. 

As of December 31, 1999, LM RFA also provides reinsurance for 4 municipalities for workers' 
com pensation clain'~s up to an annual aggregate amount ranging from 80%  to 90%  of their standard 
prem innl. 

Effective January  I, 1995, LM RFA obtained com mercial reinsurance for claim s as follows 

W orkers' Com pensation Fund 

Item 1: 

Item I1 

$1,000,000 annual aggregate 

$1,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $50,000 each and every loss up to 
$750,000 

No changes were made in the Public Liability Fund coverage 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE F;.IN D AG ENCY 

December 31, 1999 

"1 he table below illustrates the I und's earned normal premium and investment 01come compared to related costs and claims expense incurred by 
the hind as of the end of 1999 and as of the end of each of the last nine years. 

ENP and invcstmcnt 
in com e 

Operating costs, 
unallocaled 

l!shmaled incurred 
claims and expense 
end of policy )ear 

aid (cumulafve) as of 
l!nd of policy )car 
One year later 
'1 wo years later 
"1 hree )'ears later 
}'our years laler 
lixe years later 
Six years later 
~,e~en years later 
Eight )ears later 
Nine )cars ]atcr 

icrease (dccrease) ill 
cstuualed incurred 
claims and expense 
l]om end of policy 
)'ear 

998 1997 

$ 2,591 $ 4,474 

135 407 

983 2,302 
2.352 

5.004 

483 

3,901 

140 
140 
252 

3,901 
2.016 
1.906 

996 O~ 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

~lq'ih~usands) 

4,142 

415 

4,327 

427 

69 
247 

3,887 
2,083 
1,367 
1,574 

283 
,289 
,350 

3.793 
2,293 
3,818 
3,367 
3.099 

4,443 

20 

4,144 

195 
487 
490 
542 
1,155 
1.166 

4,144 
4,230 
2,304 
2,010 
2,219 
2.168 

4,897 

17 

4,079 

2 

3,792 3,263 

2 7 

3.130 4.754 3.739 3.912 

627 
627 
1,175 
1,265 
1,446 
2,104 
2,136 

3,130 
3,792 
3.146 
2,973 
3,178 
3,388 
3.032 

207 
988 

1,710 
2,6"15 
3.700 
2,701 
2,844 
3.022 

4,754 
4,13'4 
5,501 
5,382 
4,501 
4,3C0 
4,144 
4,055 

82 
388 

1,249 
1,562 
1,732 
2,284 
2,474 
2,646 
2,722 

3,739 
2,862 
3,526 
3,828 
4,051 
4,488 
4,298 
4.076 
3.807 

222 
279 
279 
321 
008 
147 
422 
721 
785 
799 

3.912 
3,608 
3,297 
3,686 
3,122 
3.746 
3,501 
3.618 
3,268 
2,994 

50 (I,995) (2,313) (694) (1,976) (98) (699) 68 (918) 

fli~clive January I, 1996, the Fund accounted for investments on a lair value basis 

Sec accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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R enort on Com uliance and on Internal Control O ver Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed in 

Accordance w ith Governm ent A uditin~ Standards 

O fficers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency 

W e have audited tile financial statements of Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency (the Fund) as of and 
for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated April 19, 2000. W e 
conducted our audit in accordance w ill1 generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Com ptroller General of the 
U nited States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statem ents are free of m aterial 
m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its com pliance w ith certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance w ith w hich could have a direct and m aterial effect on the delerm ination of financial 
slalem ent am ounts, ttowever, providing an opinion on com pliance w ith those provisions was not an 

objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standard~'. 

Inlernal Control O ver Financial Renortine 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control ow ,r financial reporting in 
order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statem ents and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. O ur consideration of 
the internal control over financial reporting w ould not necessarily disclose all m atters in the internal control 
over financial reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operafion of one or m ore of the internal control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statem ents 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the norm al course of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that w e consider to be m aterial w eakrLesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Louisiana Com m issioner of Insurance, and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
April 19, 2000 

Baton Rouge " Donaldsonville " Gonzales ' New Orleans ' Sl Francisvillc 
A~socioted OffJc~ in Principal Citios nf the United Stoles 


